
 

 

When telephoning, please ask for: Democratic Services 
Direct dial  0115 914 8511 
Email  democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk 
 
Our reference:  
Your reference: 
Date: Wednesday, 6 November 2024 

 
 
To all Members of the Planning Committee 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
A Meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Thursday, 14 November 
2024 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West 
Bridgford to consider the following items of business. 
 
This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on  
YouTube and viewed via the link: https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC 
Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be  
showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home  
page until you see the video appear. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Sara Pregon 
Monitoring Officer   
 

AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitute Members  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 

 Link to further information in the Council’s Constitution 
 

3.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 October 2024 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4.   Planning Applications (Pages 5 - 38) 
 

 The report of the Director – Development and Economic Growth 
 

5.   Planning Appeals (Pages 39 - 40) 
 

 The report of the Director – Development and Economic Growth 
 

 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/about-us/about-the-council/policies-strategies-and-other-documents/accessible-documents/council-constitution/#Councillor%20Code%20of%20Conduct


 

 

Membership  
 
Chair: Councillor R Butler  
Vice-Chair: Councillor  R Walker 
Councillors: R Walker, S Calvert, J Chaplain, A Edyvean, S Ellis, E Georgiou, 
S Mallender, D Mason, C Thomas and T Wells 
 

Meeting Room Guidance 

 
Fire Alarm Evacuation:  in the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the 
building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber.  You 
should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the 
building. 
 
Toilets: are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first 
floor. 
 
Mobile Phones: For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is 
switched off whilst you are in the meeting.   
 
Microphones:  When you are invited to speak please press the button on your 
microphone, a red light will appear on the stem.  Please ensure that you switch 
this off after you have spoken.   
 

Recording at Meetings 

 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.  
 
Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its 
decision making.  As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings 
which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be 
excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt 
 
 



 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
OF THE MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024 
Held at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West 

Bridgford 
and live streamed on Rushcliffe Borough Council’s YouTube channel 

PRESENT: 
 Councillors R Butler (Chair), R Walker (Vice-Chair), J Chaplain, A Edyvean, 

S Ellis, E Georgiou, S Mallender, D Mason and C Thomas 
 
 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 H Knott Head of Planning 
 A Cullen Planning Manager - Development, Planning and Growth 
 A Baxter Team Manager Area Planning 
 C Thompson Area Planning Officer 
 P Langton Senior Planning Officer 
 N Ford Planning Assistant 
 A Walker Borough Solicitor 
 E Richardson Democratic Services Officer 
 
 APOLOGIES: 

Councillors S Calvert and T Wells 
  

 
13 Declarations of Interest 

 
 Councillor C Thomas declared a non-pecuniary interest as Ward Councillor for 

application 23/02182/FUL and 24/00211/RELDEM and would remove herself 
from the discussion and vote for this item. 
 
Councillor H Om arrived after the start of the meeting and removed himself 
from the discussion and vote for application 24/00776/FUL. 
 

14 Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 September 2024 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2024 were agreed as a true 
record and were signed by the Chair. 
 

15 Planning Applications 
 

 The Committee considered the written report of the Director Development and 
Economic Growth relating to the following applications, which had been 
circulated previously. 
 
24/00776/FUL - Two year temporary permission for side boundary 
fencing. New side gate. Planting of side perimeter hedging. Alterations to 
existing garage with new hardstanding and adequate drainage to create 
driveway for parking (Retrospective) - 26 Lyme Park, West Bridgford, 
Nottinghamshire NG2 7TR 

page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
Updates 
 
Additional representation was received after the agenda was published and 
this was circulated to the Committee before the meeting. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning 
Committee, Ms A Mann (Applicant) and Councillor A Phillips (Ward Councillor) 
addressed the Committee. Mr P Houghton (Objector) had submitted a written 
statement prior to the meeting which was read out by the Borough Solicitor. 
 
DECISION 
 
PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, THE 
DETAILS OF WHICH ARE SET OUT IN THE REPORT PUBLISHED WITH 
THE AGENDA. 
 
23/02182/FUL and 24/00211/RELDEM - Proposed Demolition of Part of 
Existing Barns; Conversion of Existing Barns and Rebuild New Barn with 
Single Storey Extension to form 1 New Dwelling - 48 Main Street, East 
Leake, Nottinghamshire, LE12 6PG 
 
Updates 
 
Additional representation was received after the agenda was published and 
this was circulated to the Committee before the meeting. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning 
Committee, Ms K Forlani (Applicant), Ms S Postlewaite (Objector) and 
Councillor L Way (Ward Councillor) addressed the Committee.  
 
Councillor C Thomas left the Council Chamber to remove herself from the 
discussion and vote. 
 
Comments 
 
Members of the Committee sought clarification about the ecologist survey in 
relation to bats and expressed concern about work taking place if they were 
discovered to be living in the building and asked that an advisory note be 
added to the application stating that demolition and building works should 
cease should bats be found in the building. Members of the Committee noted 
the wording of Condition 5 in relation to trees and asked that the word ‘should’ 
be amended to ‘will’, to state that tree protection measures will refer to all trees 
on the site.  
 
DECISION 
 
24/00211/RELDEM – APPROVAL BE GRANTED FOR THE DEMOLITION OF 
THE BUILDING SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS SET OUT IN THE REPORT 
PUBLISHED WITH THE AGENDA, WITH AN ADVISORY NOTE THAT 
WORKS WILL STOP SHOULD BATS BE FOUND IN THE BUILDING. 
 

page 2



 

 

Councillor C Thomas rejoined the meeting. 
 
23/02182/FUL - PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS, THE DETAILS OF WHICH ARE SET OUT IN THE REPORT 
PUBLISHED WITH THE AGENDA, WITH AN ADVISORY NOTE THAT 
WORKS WILL STOP SHOULD BATS BE FOUND IN THE BUILDING AND 
THAT CONDITION 5 BE AMENDED TO STATE THAT TREE PROTECTION 
MEASURES WILL REFER TO ALL TREES ON THE SITE. 
 
24/01456/REG3 - Refurbishment & de carbonisation works including the 
installation of air source heat pumps with external plant enclosure, 
installation of photovoltaic panels, installation of thermal insulation to 
exterior timber framed walls and flat roof areas with increase in height, 
alteration to rear access into the building, removing painted timber 
window frames & replacing with powdered coated aluminium frames, and 
installation of mobile telecommunication dish - Rushcliffe Borough 
Council, Sir Julien Cahn Loughborough Road, West Bridgford, 
Nottinghamshire 
 
DECISION 
 
PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, THE 
DETAILS OF WHICH ARE SET OUT IN THE REPORT PUBLISHED WITH 
THE AGENDA. 
 

16 Planning Appeals 
 

 The Committee noted the Planning Appeal Decisions report which had been 
circulated with the agenda. 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.54 pm. 

 
 

CHAIR 

page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Thursday,  14 November 2024 
 
Planning Applications 

 

Report of the Director – Development and Economic Growth 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 

 
1. Slides relating to the application will be shown where appropriate. 

 
2. Plans illustrating the report are for identification only. 

 
3. Background Papers - the application file for each application is available for 

public inspection at the Rushcliffe Customer Contact Centre in accordance 
with the  Local Government Act 1972 and relevant planning 
legislation/Regulations.  Copies of the submitted application details are 
available on the   website http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online- 
applications/. This report is available as part of the Planning Committee Agenda 
which can be viewed five working days before the meeting at 
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140  

 Once a decision has been taken on a planning application the decision notice 
is also displayed on the website. 

 
4. Reports to the Planning Committee take into account diversity and Crime and 

Disorder issues. Where such implications are material they are referred to in the 
reports, where they are balanced with other material planning considerations. 

 
5. With regard to S17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the Police have 

advised they wish to be consulted on the following types of applications: major 
developments; those attracting significant numbers of the public e.g., public 
houses, takeaways etc.; ATM machines, new neighbourhood facilities including 
churches; major alterations to public buildings; significant areas of open 
space/landscaping or linear paths; form diversification to industrial uses in 
isolated locations. 

 
6. Where the Planning Committee have power to determine an application but the 

decision proposed would be contrary to the recommendation of the Director – 
Development and Economic Growth, the application may be referred to the 
Council for decision. 

7. The following notes appear on decision notices for full planning permissions: 
   “When carrying out building works you are advised to use door types and 
locks conforming to British Standards, together with windows that are 
performance tested (i.e. to BS 7950 for ground floor and easily accessible 
windows in homes). You are also advised to consider installing a burglar 
alarm, as this is the most effective way of protecting against burglary. 

page 5

Agenda Item 4

http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140


If you have not already made a Building Regulations application we would 
recommend that you check to see if one is required as soon as possible. Help 
and guidance can be obtained by ringing 0115 914 8459, or by looking at our 
web site at 

http://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/buildingcontrol  

 
 
 
Application Address Page      

   
24/00485/FUL 146 Loughborough Road Ruddington Nottinghamshire 

NG11 6LJ 

7 - 26 

 Erection of Single Dwelling  

Ward Ruddington  

Recommendation Planning permission be granted subject to conditions   

   
Application Address Page      

   
24/00603/FUL Fields Farm Barton Lane Thrumpton 27 - 38 

 Demolition of existing extension and detached 
outbuilding, Erect two 2 storey side extensions, single 
storey rear extension, rear dormer windows 
replacement bay windows to front 
 

 

Ward Gotham  
   
Recommendation Planning permission be refused  
   
   
   
   

 

 

page 6

http://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/buildingcontrol
https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=SAW3DXNLJTQ00
https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=SBPNA8NLK1000


This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with
the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Application Number: 24/00485/FUL
146 Loughborough Road, Ruddington 
4

scale 1:2000 page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

24/00485/FUL 

  

Applicant Mr Adrian Kerrison 

  

Location 146 Loughborough Road, Ruddington, Nottinghamshire, NG11 6LJ 

 
 
  

Proposal Erection of Single Dwelling 

 
  

Ward Ruddington 

 

 

THE SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 

Details of the application can be found here 
 

1. The application site relates to the garden area of a two-storey detached dwelling 

at 146 Loughborough Road, located within the built up area of Ruddington. The 

application site is accessed off Loughborough Road through a private driveway 

which is shared with the host property and two bungalows at no’s 146A (south) 

and 146B (north) Loughborough Road. 

 

2. The application site is relatively flat and has been cleared of vegetation prior to 

the application being submitted to the Council for consideration. However, the 

site is bounded by some mature trees and hedges on the western and southern 

boundaries. 

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
3. Planning permission is sought to build a 1.5 storey detached dwelling to the 

west of the host dwelling at 146 Loughborough Road. Access would be provided 

from the private driveway along the northern elevation of the host dwelling 

where off-street parking for the host dwelling would be provided. 

 

4. The proposed dwelling would have pitched roof with a flat roof element to the 

rear, 4 bedrooms and a T-shaped footprint that would measure 27.58m x 17.8m, 

6.77m at ridge height and 3.73m at eaves height. 

 

5. Proposed materials would be: red brick, timber cladding, coloured windows and 

doors, and slate roof. 

 

6. The proposal was amended during the life of the application in order to seek to 

address concerns of Officers and neighbouring residents These amendments 

included reducing the scale of the whole property to 1.5 storeys, reduction of 

page 9

https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


 

 

the rear wing, setting the property further away from 146B and re-elevated so 

that there are  no windows facing this property and the revisions were consulted 

on. 

SITE HISTORY 
 
7. 24/01191/FUL – Two storey side extension, fenestration and cladding 

alterations to existing facades, with new patio area and boundary fencing – 

GRANTED 

 

8. The above application relates to the existing dwelling on the site. 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Ward Councillors 

 

9. One Ward Councillor (Cllr J Walker) – I object to this application due to the 

overbearing scale and overlooking. This 2 storey application is out of character 

for that section of Loughborough Road as most of the homes along the back of 

Loughborough Road are bungalows to ensure there is no overlooking into the 

gardens of the residents on Rufford Road.  

 

10. Cllr J Walker maintained her objection to the revised plans objecting due to over 

intensification and overlooking. 

Town/Parish Council  
 

11. Ruddington Parish Council – Objects to the application as it is over intensive 

and out of character with properties nearby. It is overbearing as it’s double 

storey next to bungalows. There is also concern regarding the width of the 

access drive. The Parish Council is unhappy that the site was cleared of trees 

prior to the submission of the planning application. 

 

12. Comments on the revised proposed plans – The Parish Council maintain their 

objection. It is inappropriate in its environment, it will be too overbearing and 

over intensive for the site. Although the application states that it is a 1.5 storey 

property, the actual height (6.9m) is the average height of a two-storey building, 

meaning that it is still too high. The building work would create access issues 

for the neighbouring property. The trees that have been removed in the grounds 

should be replanted. We support the neighbours comments. 

Statutory and Other Consultees 
 
Rushcliffe Borough Council 
 
13.  Sustainability  Officer –  noted that the existing property is not within the red 

line, that the site has been cleared prior to planning permission being granted, 
that  the site is a private garden with private dwellings and gardens surrounding 
the site, that  aerial photography shows the site previously containing trees, 

page 10



 

 

shrubs, grassland and ruderal habitats,  that the site is not in or adjacent to a 
nationally or locally designated site and that no records for protected species 
exist for this site or adjacent sites. I note bat protected species are recorded 
from the locality. 

 
The officer advised that there is potential that trees on the site may support 
bats, trees should not be removed without an ecological assessment carried 
out by a suitably qualified ecologist and recommended that reasonable 
avoidance measures and enhancement measures contained within the 
Councils standing advice should be implemented and a condition of any 
planning permission. 

 
The officer advised that it is unlikely this development will have a detrimental 
impact on populations of protected species. 

 
The application is exempt from statutory biodiversity net gain as it predates the 
implementation of this legislation for this type of proposal. 

 
14. Landscape Officer – Some mature trees are located just to the west of the site 

boundary within the rear gardens of properties on Rufford Road. There is a 
twinned stemmed Sycamore with a third stem growing out of the ground nearby, 
further to the north of this in an adjacent garden is a better formed Beech tree. 
The trees are quite large but despite their size the trees are barely visible from 
public vantage points. Views of the trees can be sought out from specific and 
very limited viewpoints such as gaps between neighbouring buildings. 
Generally they are well set back from adjacent roads and paths and screened 
by other buildings, boundary features or vegetation, as a result they don’t have 
sufficient public amenity value to warrant protection.   

 

The site owner has the common law right to prune back any roots or branches 

that encroach onto their land as this is considered a legal nuisance, as this can 

be done whether or not permission is granted it wouldn’t be a reason for refusal. 

When doing so the site owner will owe the tree owners a general duty of care, 

but this will primarily be a civil matter.  

 

If permission is granted the work is likely to harm both trees as the property is 

only 1 to 2m from the boundary line and will be well within the root protection 

area of the trees. There are construction techniques such as pile and beams 

that could be used to bridge over roots, but this would raise the finished floor 

level and from what I can see these haven’t been put forward. The best practice 

set out in BS5837 should also be observed to avoid ground compaction in the 

working zone where roots are retained next to the proposed building and as 

such we could condition tree protection measures in accordance with the British 

Standard.  

 
Local Residents and the General Public  
 
15.   5 letters of representation have been received raising the following matters: 

a. Contrary to policy 11 of the LPP2 and residential design guide 

page 11



 

 

b. Vegetation was removed prior to the application submission 

c. Harmful to the character and pattern of development 

d. Loss of view 

e. Visual harm and unduly prominent 

f. Overbearing scale and proximity (2 storey) 

g. Inappropriate massing 

h. Environmental concerns and sustainability 

i. Privacy and overlooking issues 

j. Further drainage issues 

k. The evergreen boundary should be maintained at a certain height 

 

16.  As a result of the neighbour re-consultation on the revised plans, a further 4 
letters of representation were received. The following comments were made: 
a. Previous concerns still valid 

b. The revision does not address the previous concerns raised regarding 

height and proximity, size and scale 

c. Impact of this together with the extension at the existing property 

increases the overall footprint dwarfing adjoining properties 

d. No details of planting for screening, reference is made to instant mature 

screen along the northern boundary and not the boundary with Rufford 

Road  

e. 146 will not have parking spaces 

f. Disruption to neighbours due to deliveries during construction works 

g. Loss of privacy and light 

h. Difficult access 

i. Large flat roof that will be accessible from a 2nd floor bedroom via a 

balcony which looks like a roof terrace 

PLANNING POLICY 
 
17. The Development Plan for Rushcliffe consists of The Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 

1: Core Strategy (LPP1), the Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies 
(LPP2) and the Ruddington Neighbourhood Plan. Other material considerations 
include the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National 
Planning Practice Guidance (the Guidance). 

 
Relevant National Planning Policies and Guidance 
 
18. The relevant policy considerations in the NPPF (2023) are: 

• Paragraph 11c) 

• Chapter 12 (Achieving well- designed and beautiful places)  
 

Full details of the NPPF can be found here. 
 
Relevant Local Planning Policies and Guidance 
 
19. The relevant policy considerations in the LPP1 are: 

 

page 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


 

 

• Policy 1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) 

• Policy 2 (Climate Change) 

• Policy 3 (Spatial Strategy) 

• Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) 

• Policy 17 (Biodiversity) 
 

20. The relevant policy considerations in the LPP2 are: 
 

• Policy 1 (Development Requirements) 

• Policy 11 (Housing development on unallocated sites within Settlements) 

• Policy 12 (Housing Standards) 

• Policy 17 (Managing Flood Risk) 

• Policy 18 (Surface Water Management) 

• Policy 28 (Conserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets) 

• Policy 37 (Trees and Woodlands) 

• Policy 38 (Non-designated Biodiversity Assets and the Wider Ecological 
Network) 

 
21. The Ruddington Neighbourhood Plan relevant policies are: 

 

• Policy 8 (Traffic and New Development) 

• Policy 9 (Parking) 

• Design Guide (Loughborough Road Character Area 10) 

 

22. The full text of the policies in the LPP1 and LPP2 and Ruddington 

Neighbourhood Plan, together with the supporting text can be found in the Local 

Plan documents on the Council’s website at: Planning Policy - Rushcliffe 

Borough Council. 

 

23. The Rushcliffe Residential Design Guide is also a material consideration.  

APPRAISAL 
 
24. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The Framework does not change the 
statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision 
making. Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local Plan 
should be approved, and proposed development that conflicts should be 
refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
25. The main issues in the consideration of the application are: 

- The principle of the development 
- Character of the area and design  
- Residential amenity 
- Highway safety 
- Ecology and Trees 
- Flood risk 

 

page 13

https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planning-growth/planning-policy/
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planning-growth/planning-policy/


 

 

The principle of the development 
 
26. The overarching Policy 1 in the Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy reinforces that 

a positive and proactive approach to decision making should be had which 

reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the 

NPPF. 

 

27. The proposal falls to be considered under LPP2 Policy 11 (Housing 

Development on Unallocated Sites within Settlements), whereby planning 

permission will be granted for development on unallocated sites subject to 

compliance with the criteria listed under part 1 of this policy. Of specific 

relevance are criteria a, b, c, f, and g whereby planning permission will be 

granted provided that:  

 

a)  the proposal in terms of scale and location is in accordance with Local 

Plan Part 1: Core Strategy Policy 3 (Spatial Strategy); 

b)  the proposal is of a high standard of design and does not adversely affect 

the character or pattern of the area by reason of its scale, bulk, form, 

layout or materials; 

c)  the existing site does not make a significant contribution to the amenity of 

the surrounding area by virtue of its character or open nature; 

f)  the proposal would not cause a significant adverse impact on the amenity 

of nearby residents and occupiers; and 

g)  appropriate provision for access and parking is made. 

  
28. The application site is located within the built up area of the key settlement of 

Ruddington, as backland development set behind two-storey detached 

properties on Loughborough Road. The site is therefore located close to shops, 

services and frequent transport links.  

 

29. Backland development is a character feature of the area (noted in the 

Ruddington Design Guide Character Area 10) as there are several clusters of 

properties developed behind the dwellings fronting Loughborough Road, 

including the application site. The existing site is not considered to have any 

characteristics that offer significant benefits to the amenity of the surrounding 

area by virtue of its character and its does not have a particularly open nature. 

As such it is considered the principle of the development to be acceptable in 

this location and in compliance with Policy 11 of LPP2, subject to satisfying all 

other planning considerations which are assessed below. 

 

Character of the area and design 

 

30. The proposal comprises a 1.5 storey dwelling that would be set to the rear of 

the host dwelling – no.146 Loughborough Road. No. 146 is a two-storey 

detached dwelling of a traditional design that occupies a large plot and is served 

off a private driveway shared with the neighbouring bungalows to the north and 

page 14



 

 

south at no’s 146A and 146B Loughborough Road. The neighbouring properties 

are bungalows, each designed independently and due to the large visual gaps 

between built form, they form their own character area. 

 

31. The proposed dwelling would have a T shaped footprint as it would include a 

double garage and a single storey element to link the main dwelling and the 

garage in order to create a courtyard arrangement, more bespoke for an end of 

a driveway. The design would include dual pitched roofs with gable features and 

modern materials and a flat roof element to the rear. 

 
32. Backland development is a character feature of the area and given the size of 

the plot no.146 occupies, the subdivision to create another plot would be 

acceptable in terms of size of resulting plots for each dwelling. The size of the 

resultant plots would be similar to other plots within the immediate area, and 

the remaining useable residential garden for both the host dwelling and the 

proposed dwelling would be acceptable. It is considered therefore that the site 

would be capable of accommodating the proposed dwelling of the size and 

scale proposed without appearing cramped or overintensive. 

 

33. Neighbouring properties are comprised of bungalows to the north and south 

and two-storey dwellings to the east and west. Whilst the properties fronting 

Loughborough Road are of a more traditional and similar design, the properties 

behind vary in scale and design and have a limited contribution to the street 

scene, mostly due to the scale and distance from the public realm. As such it is 

considered the proposed scale of 1.5 storey dwelling to be set to the rear of 146 

Loughborough Road would be visually acceptable and in keeping with the scale 

and character of the host dwelling and the wider area. 

 

34. The design of the proposed dwelling is a mix of red brick and timber cladding 

with varying roof designs to match the existing dwelling. The existing dwelling 

has recently obtained planning permission for extensions which would be 

similar in design, material and appearance as the proposed dwelling. Whilst the 

proposed dwelling would represent a reasonably substantial dwelling (in its 

overall footprint) it would be well set back from the public realm and designed 

so as to limit its overall prominence - with the flat roof design, single storey 

projections, single storey link to the garage and the variation in roof height from 

north to south. Overall, the design, proposed materials and well-proportioned 

openings and feature timber cladding to provide visual interest would result in 

a dwelling that would not result in an unacceptably designed dwelling. 

 

 

35. The proposed development is therefore in accordance with the NPPF, Policies 

8 and 10 of the LPP1, Policies 1 and 11 of the LPP2 and the Ruddington 

Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

 

 

page 15



 

 

Residential amenity 

 

36. The proposed development comprises a 1.5 storey detached dwelling that 

would be set to the rear of the host dwelling at no.146 Loughborough Road. 

The dwelling would have 4 bedrooms, all at first floor. Windows serving 

bedrooms at first floor would be in the southern and eastern elevations. The 

rest of the windows at first floor would serve ensuites, bathrooms, landing or 

stairwell and could be conditioned to be obscurely glazed and top opening only 

in order to prevent an overlooking impact on the amenities of the occupiers of 

adjoining properties. 

 

37. The dwelling would have T shaped footprint measuring 27.58m in length along 

the western boundary adjoining the rear gardens serving dwellings on Rufford 

Road. Due to the design of the dwelling, the built form along the western 

boundary would be varied in terms of eaves and ridge heights, roof choice and 

type and openings and would measure between 2.26m at eaves and 6.9m the 

maximum ridge height. Whilst it would offer a brick wall to look at compared to 

the tree/vegetation that were removed, the design does offer a degree of 

interestingness with various eaves and ridge heights, traditional materials, roof 

types and openings, and given the distance to the rear elevation of properties 

on Rufford Road of approximately 29 metres, it is considered the proposed 

development would not result in a significantly undue impact on the residential 

amenities of the occupiers of the dwellings on Rufford Road by way of 

overlooking, overbearing and overshadowing. 

 

38. To the north the application site is adjoined by a detached bungalow at no.146B 

Loughborough Road. The garage wing would be set in approximately 2.0m from 

the common boundary with no.146B and no openings are proposed in the side 

elevation of the proposed garage. The distance to the rear elevation of no.146B 

would be approximately 11 metres. The main part of the dwelling would have 

roof lights at first floor that would serve non-habitable rooms, and therefore 

could be conditioned to be obscurely glazed, and the distance to the common 

boundary with no.146B would be approximately 12.7m. It is considered, given 

the separation distances, scale of the proposed dwelling and separation 

distances, the proposed dwelling would not result in a significantly undue impact 

on the residential amenities of the occupiers of no.146B Loughborough Road 

by way of overlooking, overbearing and overshadowing. 

 

39. The proposed dwelling would be set approximately in line with the host dwelling 

– no.146 Loughborough Road, but in a lower position within the site, so that the 

eaves and ridge height along the common boundary would be significantly 

below that of the host dwelling. No openings are proposed along the boundary 

with the host dwelling and the roof lights proposed in the roof slope facing the 

host dwelling would serve a bedroom and could be conditioned to be obscurely 

glazed and fixed in order to protect the amenity of the host dwelling. It is 

considered, given the relationship proposed, size and scale of the proposed 

page 16



 

 

dwelling and site orientation, the proposed dwelling would not result in a 

significantly undue impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of 

no.146 Loughborough Road by way of overlooking, overbearing and 

overshadowing. Consideration is also given to the recently approved 

extensions at no. 146 however again no adverse impact would arise in respect 

to the relationship between the existing and proposed dwelling in respect of 

residential amenity.  

 

40. To the south the application site is adjoined by another detached bungalow at 

no.146A Loughborough Road. The proposed dwelling would have its private 

amenity area adjoining no.146A and the depth of the garden would be 

approximately 16 metres. The distance to the common boundary with no.146A 

from the 1.5 storey part of the dwelling would be approximately 12 metres. It is 

therefore considered, given the separation distances and the relationship with 

no.146A, the proposed development would not result in a significantly undue 

impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of no.146A Loughborough 

Road by way of overlooking, overbearing and overshadowing. 

 

41. The distance to the rear boundaries of properties fronting Loughborough Road 

would be approximately 33 – 36 metres and therefore no concern is raised to 

amenity impacts upon these properties. 

 

42. Concerns are raised by neighbouring residents regarding the use of flat roofed 

area for a balcony. Whilst concerns are noted, a Juliet balcony is proposed only 

for this area to the south elevation and use of the flat roof area is to be restricted 

by condition.  

 

43. It considered, given the scale, size and design of the proposal, site orientation, 

separation distances and relationship with adjoining properties, the proposed 

development would not result in a significantly undue impact on the residential 

amenities of the occupiers of any adjoining property, in accordance with the 

NPPF, Policy 10 of the LPP1and Policy 1 and Policy 11 (f) of LPP2. 

Highway Safety 
 

44. The proposed dwelling would have 4 bedrooms and therefore, in accordance 

with the Highways Design, a requirement to provide 3 off-street parking spaces. 

The dwelling would have an integral double garage and a large driveway/turning 

area which can accommodate a minimum of 3 more parking spaces. As such it 

is considered the proposal is acceptable form a parking provision perspective. 

Sufficient turning area is also proposed to allow vehicles to manoeuvre and 

leave the site in a forward gear. 

 

45. The host dwelling would have a minimum of 2 off-street parking spaces 

proposed to the northern elevation and additional parking would be provided to 

the frontage within the hardstanding area, along with sufficient space for 

manoeuvring. As such it is considered the host dwelling would have sufficient 

page 17



 

 

off-street parking spaces in order to comply with the Highways Design Guide 

on residential parking. 

 

46. The dwelling would utilise an existing access and whilst the proposal would 

increase the amount of traffic using the site the access, it is unlikely to generate 

a significant increase in traffic on the existing shared driveway to warrant safety 

concerns on Loughborough Road. 

 

47. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not result in highway safety 

concerns and would accord with criteria g) of Policy 11 of the LPP2 and Policy 

9 of the Ruddington Neighbourhood Plan. 

Ecology and Trees 
 

48. Policy 17 of the LPP1 envisages that biodiversity will be increased in the 

Borough during the plan period by, amongst other things, seeking to ensure 

new development provides biodiversity features and improves existing 

biodiversity features wherever appropriate. Policy 38 of the LPP2 states that 

outside of the Biodiversity Opportunity Areas (BOA) developments should, 

where appropriate, seek to achieve net gains in biodiversity and improvements 

to the ecological network through the creation, protection and enhancement of 

habitats, and the incorporation of features that benefit biodiversity. 

 

49. Whilst there are no records of protected species on site and the site clearance 

works undertaken before submission, the trees on site have the potential to host 

roosting bats and as such it is recommended a condition to deal with this aspect 

as well as measures to ensure the trees on site are protected during 

construction works.  

 

50. It is recommended, should planning permission be forthcoming, that site 

enhancement measures are incorporated within the development and a 

condition would ensure this is achieved. 

 

51. Subject to the conditions mentioned above it is considered that the proposed 

development would accord with policy 17 of the LPP1 and Policy 38 of the 

LPP2.  

 

52. Paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states 

that planning permission is deemed to have been granted subject to the 

“biodiversity gain condition” which means development granted by this notice 

must not begin unless: 

a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, 
and 

b) the planning authority has approved the plan. 
 

53. Based on the information submitted in the planning application documents, the 

scale of the proposed development and the date of submission – prior to the 

page 18



 

 

2nd April 2024, the Planning Authority considers that this permission is exempt 

from biodiversity net gain under the temporary exemption for non-major 

development under Article 2 Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, and as such does not require 

approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun.  

 

54. There are nearby trees on neighbouring properties and with the proposed 

dwelling being in relatively close proximity to the boundary, some protection 

should still be possible and as such it is considered reasonable and necessary 

to condition that measures in accordance with BS5837 are adopted.  
 

55. The proposal has the potential to impact on the root protection area of adjacent 

trees on neighbouring properties due to the closeness of the dwelling to the 

boundary. It is therefore considered appropriate to condition the details of the 

construction techniques, protection measures and finished floor levels. 

 

56. The proposed site plan shows that the garden would likely be grassed with 

some tree planting proposed to the north and south/west boundaries. 

Hedgerow is also proposed along the south/west boundary of the site. To 

secure such measures and ensure appropriate planting a landscaping plan 

condition is considered to be reasonable and necessary.  

Flood Risk 
 
57. The application site is within Flood Zone 1 and as such is not considered to be 

at high risk of flooding or at high risk of causing flooding elsewhere. The 
application form states that foul and surface water drainage would be via the 
main sewers. Given the built up location of the application site there are 
considered to be limited alternatives, and surface water runoff is unlikely to be 
significantly increased as a result of the proposal. 

 
Other Matters 
 

58. Concerns regarding construction traffic implications upon highway safety and 

residential amenity is noted, however it is not expected that significant impacts 

would arise from the small-scale nature of the proposal. A condition is 

recommended to restrict the hours of construction. 

 

59. Concerns raised regarding loss of view is noted but is not a material planning 

consideration. Impact upon residential amenity is considered above. 

Conclusion 
 
60. Negotiations have taken place during the consideration of the application in order 

to seek to address officer concerns and those raised by representations. The 

amendments have addressed these to the satisfaction of officers and the 

application is recommended for approval. 

 

page 19

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2


 

 

61. As outlined in this report, in this instance the proposed development is a 

sustainable development that would make a small contribution to the housing 

supply within the Borough. It is also considered to be acceptable in terms of its 

design and layout and would not, subject to the suggested conditions, have a 

harmful impact on the character of the area, highway safety, residential amenity 

or ecology. It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in 

accordance with the relevant polices within the Development Plan. As such, the 

application is recommended for approval subject to conditions. 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is RECOMMENDED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
condition(s) 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 

[To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004]. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans: 
 
- Site Location Plan PL001, received 30.10.2024 
- Proposed Site Plan, drawing no. PL-102, received 25.07.2024 
- Proposed Plans, drawing no. PL-103, received 25.07.2024 
- Proposed Elevations, drawing no. PL-104, received 25.07.2024 
 
[For the avoidance of doubt and to comply with Policy 1 (Presumption in 
Favour of Sustainable Development) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: 
Core Strategy and Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe 
Local Plan Part 2: Land & Planning Policies]. 
 

3. The development hereby permitted must not proceed above the damp 
proof course level until details of the type, texture and colour of the 
materials to be used in the construction of the exterior of the development 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development must only be constructed in accordance with 
the approved materials.  

 
[To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory having 
regard to policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of the 
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and policy 1 of the 
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019).] 

 
4. The development hereby permitted must not commence until details of 

both the existing and proposed land levels across the site and relative to 

adjoining land, together with the finished floor levels of the proposed 

building(s), have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The details shall have regard to condition 6 below and 

page 20



 

 

include construction techniques to protect the root protection of the 

adjacent Beech and Sycamore trees. Thereafter the development hereby 

permitted must be carried out and completed in accordance with the 

approved details. 

 

[To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development in respect of 

its relationship to adjoining properties having regard to policies 10 

(Design and Enhancing Identity)) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core 

Strategy (2014); Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe 

Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019) and Chapter 12 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework. This is a pre commencement 

condition required to ensure that the proposal is acceptable in respect of 

impacts on adjacent trees and the amenity of adjacent occupiers.] 

 

5. The development hereby permitted must not be occupied or first brought 

into use until a written scheme detailing the hard and soft landscaping of 

the site (including the location, number, size and species of any new 

trees/shrubs to be planted) has been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Thereafter the scheme must be carried out and completed in accordance 

with the approved details no later than during the first planting season 

(October - March) following either the substantial completion of the 

development hereby permitted or it being brought into use, whichever is 

sooner.  

 

If, within a period of 5 years of from the date of planting, any tree or shrub 

planted as part of the approved scheme is removed, uprooted, destroyed, 

dies or become diseased or damaged then another tree or shrub of the 

same species and size as that originally planted must be planted in the 

same place during the next planting season following its removal.  

 

Once provided all hard landscaping works shall thereafter be permanently 

retained throughout the lifetime of the development. 

 

[To ensure the development creates a visually attractive environment and 

to safeguard against significant adverse effects on the landscape 

character of the area having regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing 

Local Identity) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014); 

Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: 

Land and Planning Policies (2019) and Chapter 12 (Achieving Well-

designed Places) of the National Planning Policy Framework.] 

 

6. The development hereby permitted must not commence and no 

preparatory operations in connection with the development hereby 

permitted (including demolition, site clearance works, fires, soil moving, 

page 21



 

 

temporary access construction and / or widening, or any operations 

involving the use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) shall 

take place on the site until a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement 

(AMS) prepared in accordance with BS5837:2012 'Trees in relation to 

design, demolition and construction - Recommendations', has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 

all protective fencing has been erected as required by the AMS.  

 

The AMS must include full details of the following:  

a) The timing and phasing of any arboricultural works in relation to the 

approved development; 

b) Detailed tree felling and pruning specification in accordance with 

BS3998:2010 Recommendations for Tree Works; 

c) Details of a Tree Protection Scheme in accordance with BS5837:2012 

which provides for the retention and protection of trees, shrubs and 

hedges growing on or adjacent to the site which are to be retained or 

which are the subject of any Tree Preservation Order; 

d) Details of any construction works required within the root protection 

area as defined by BS5837:2012 or otherwise protected in the Tree 

Protection Scheme; 

e) Details of the location of any underground services and methods of 

installation which make provision for protection and the long-term 

retention of the trees on the site. Notwithstanding the provisions of the 

Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 

2015, no services shall be dug or laid into the ground other than in 

accordance with the approved details; 

f) Details of any changes in ground level, including existing and 

proposed spot levels, required within the root protection area as 

defined by BS5837:2012 or otherwise protected in the approved Tree 

Protection Scheme; 

g) Details of the arrangements for the implementation, supervision and 

monitoring of works required to comply with the AMS. 

 

[To ensure the adequate protection of the existing trees and hedgerows 

on the site during the construction of the development having regard to 

regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of the 

Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014); Policies 37 (Trees and 

Woodlands) and 38 (Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets and the Wider 

Ecological Network) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and 

Planning Policies (2019) and Chapter 15 (Conserving and Enhancing the 

Natural Environment) of the National Planning Policy Framework.] 

 

7.       All construction and/or demolition works on the site and all deliveries of 

construction materials to the site must only take place between the 

following hours: 

o 07:00 to 19:00 on Mondays to Fridays (inclusive), and; 

page 22



 

 

o 08:00 to 17:00 on Saturdays. 
No construction, demolition or associated deliveries whatsoever must 
take place on the site on Sundays or on Bank or Public Holidays.  

 
[To protect the amenities of nearby residential properties for the duration 
of the construction of the development hereby permitted, having regard 
to having regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the 
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 
(Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land 
and Planning Policies (2019).] 
 

8. Prior to the construction of the development progressing above Damp 

Proof Course (DPC), details of a scheme of integrated ecological 

enhancements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Any such scheme shall include the provision of the 

following features: 

- Bat Bricks/Bat Tiles 

- Swift Bricks 

- Bee Bricks 

- Details of gaps in all gardens and all perimeter fencing, walls or other 

means of enclosure to allow hedgehogs to navigate the environment 

along with details of signage to be erected. 

 

The biodiversity enhancements shall be implemented in accordance with 

the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development and 

shall be retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development. 

 

[To provide habitats for protected/endangered species, and to ensure that 

the proposed development contributes to the conservation and 

enhancement of biodiversity within the site and for the wider area in 

accordance with Chapter 15 of the NPPF (2023), Policies 10 (Design and 

Enhancing Local Identity), and 17 (Biodiversity) of the Rushcliffe Local 

Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014); and Policies 1 (Development 

Requirements) and 38 (Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets and the Wider 

Ecological Network) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and 

Planning Policies (2019).] 

 

9. The first floor windows and roof windows in the northern and western 

elevations of the development hereby permitted must be; 

a) either non opening or the opening part be more than 1.7 metres as 

measured above the floor level, and 

b) fitted with glass which has been rendered permanently obscured 

to Group 5 level of privacy or equivalent.   

 

Thereafter, those window(s) must be retained to this specification 

throughout the lifetime of the development. 

 

page 23



 

 

[To preserve the amenities of neighbouring properties, having regard to 

Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local 

Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development 

Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning 

Policies (2019).] 

 

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Schedule 2 Part 1 of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 

(or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no window openings 

or rooflights (other than those expressly authorised by this permission) 

shall be inserted into any elevation of the dwelling hereby permitted 

without express planning permission from the Local Planning Authority. 

 

[To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the insertion 

of any additional window openings or rooflights that may adversely affect 

the amenities/privacy of neighbouring properties having regard to Policy 

10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 

1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the 

Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019).] 

 

11. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 55(2)(a)(i) and 55(2)(d) of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or Article 3(1) of the Town and 

Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 the garage hereby permitted 

must be kept available at all times for the parking of motor vehicles of the 

occupants of the dwelling and their visitors and must not be used for any 

other purpose whatsoever.  

 

[To ensure that sufficient parking provision is retained at the site having 

regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the 

Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 

(Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land 

and Planning Policies (2019).] 

 

12. The single storey flat roof area (located to the south of bed 1 on the plans 

hereby approved by this permission) must not be used as a balcony, roof 

garden or any other similar amenity area whatsoever.  

 

[To protect the occupiers of neighbouring properties from adverse 

overlooking/loss of privacy having regard to Policy 10 (Design and 

Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core 

Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the 

Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019).] 

 

13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Schedule 2 Part 1 Classes B and C 

of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting that 

page 24



 

 

Order) no enlargement or other alteration to the roof of the dwelling 

hereby permitted shall be carried out without express planning 

permission from the Local Planning Authority. 

 

[To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over any future 

enlargements and/or alterations to the roof of the dwelling that may harm 

the amenities of neighbouring properties, the appearance of the dwelling 

or the character of the area having regard to Policy 10 (Design and 

Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core 

Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the 

Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019)] 

Note- 
 
Negotiations have taken place during the consideration of the application to address 
adverse impacts identified by officers/to address concerns/objections raised in letters 
of representation submitted in connection with the proposal. Amendments have been 
made to the proposal, addressing the identified adverse impacts, thereby resulting in 
a more acceptable scheme  
 
Based on the information submitted in the planning application documents, the scale 
of the proposed development and the date of submission – prior to the 2nd April 2024, 
the Planning Authority considers that this permission is exempt from biodiversity net 
gain under the temporary exemption for non-major development under Article 2 Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, 
and as such does not require approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development 
is begun. 

 
Having regard to the above and having taken into account matters raised there are no 
other material considerations which are of significant weight in reaching a decision on 
this application. 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT 
 
Please be advised that all applications approved on or after the 7th October 2019 may 
be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The Borough Council considers 
that the approved development is CIL chargeable. Full details of the amount payable, 
the process and timescales for payment, and any potential exemptions/relief that may 
be applicable will be set out in a Liability Notice to be issued following this decision. 
Further information about CIL can be found on the Borough Council's website at 
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/ 
 
You are advised to ensure disturbance to neighbours is kept to a minimum during 
construction by restricting working hours to Monday to Friday 7.00am to 7.00pm, 
Saturday 8.00am to 5.00pm and by not working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. If you 
intend to work outside these hours you are requested to contact the Environmental 
Health Officer on 0115 918322. 
 
This permission does not give any legal right for any work on, over or under land or 
buildings outside the application site ownership or affecting neighbouring property, 

page 25



 

 

including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within that property and any storage 
of materials outside the application site. If any such work is anticipated, the consent of 
the adjoining landowner must first be obtained. 
 
This grant of planning permission does not alter the private legal situation with regard 
to the carrying out of any works involving land which you do not own or control. You 
will need the consent of the owner(s) involved before any such works are started. 
 
Please contact the Borough Council (Tel: 0115 981 9911) and ask for the Recycling 
Officer to arrange for payment and delivery of the bins 
 
Nesting birds and bats, their roosts and their access to these roosts are protected 
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Should birds be nesting in the trees 
concerned it is recommended that felling/surgery should be carried out between 
September and January for further advice contact Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust on 
0115 958 8242 or by email at info@nottswt.co.uk. If bats are present you should 
contact Natural England on 0300 060 3900 or by email at 
enquiries@naturalengland.org.uk. It is an offence under S148 and S151 of the 
Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and as such you should 
undertake every effort to prevent it occurring. 
 

 

page 26



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with
the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Application Number: 24/00603/FUL
Fields Farm, Barton Lane, Thrumpton
4

scale 1:2000 page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

24/00603/FUL 

  

Applicant Mr C OGrady  

  

Location Fields Farm, Barton Lane, Thrumpton  

 
  

Proposal Demolition of existing extension and detached outbuilding, Erect two 2 
storey side extensions, single storey rear extension, rear dormer 
windows replacement bay windows to front. 

 

  

Ward Gotham 

 
THE SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
Details of the application can be found here 
 
1. The application site - Fields Farm, is a two-storey detached dwelling located 

within the Green Belt, on the north-western side of Barton Lane, to the east of 
Thrumpton. The application site is also located within Thrumpton Conservation 
Area. Adjoining neighbours are comprised of a complex of farm buildings 
converted to dwellings to the east. 
 

2. The dwelling has been extended through the addition of single storey side and 
rear extensions. The volume of the original building is approximately 539.98 
cubic metres. 
 

3. The site is located within the Nottingham-Derby Green Belt. 
 

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4. Planning permission is sought for 2No. two-storey side extensions, single 

storey rear extension, replace the front bay windows and new rear facing 
dormer windows. 
 

5. The proposed rear extension would have flat roof and would measure 3.36m 
in depth, 6.84m in width and 3.0m in height. 

 
6. The proposed side extensions would have pitched roof and a rear facing 

dormer each, would measure 3.22m in width, 3.84m in depth, 5.55m at eaves 
height and 8.3m at ridge height. 
 

7. Two dormer windows are proposed to be inserted into the roof on the rear 
elevation of the main roof. 

 
8. The proposed replacement bay windows would be squared and would have 

flat roof. 
 

9. The proposal was amended during the course of the assessment to omit the 
originally proposed gates and pillars and amend the site area. 

 

page 29

https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


 

 

 

SITE HISTORY 
 
10. 75/02557/HIST - Erect stable block – GRANTED 

 
11. 81/00454/SOUTH - Use barn as workshop and yard as lorry park – REFUSED 
 
12. 83/07426/HIST - Use of farm outbuildings as a spanish guitar centre – 

GRANTED 
 
13. 87/00358/G1P - Retention of caravan for kennel maid – GRANTED 
 
14. 89/00763/G1P - Convert and extend barns to form 2 dwellings; form new 

vehicular accesses – GRANTED 
 
15. 89/00835/G1P - Demolish two agricultural barns – GRANTED 
 
16. 90/00107/G1P - Convert and extend barns to form 1 dwelling; new vehicular 

access (Revised Proposal) – GRANTED 
 
17. 23/02070/FUL - Demolition of existing extension and detached outbuilding, 

Erect two 2 storey side extensions, single storey rear extension, single storey 
link garage, rear dormer window. Erection of new walls and gates to front 
access/boundary – WITHDRAWN 

 
18. 23/02093/RELDEM - Demolition of existing extension and detached 

outbuilding - WITHDRAWN 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Ward Councillor(s) 
 
19. One Ward Councillor (Cllr R Walker) – In my view the key aspects of this 

application are the impact upon the Thrumpton Conservation Area and whether 
or not the proposals meet the exception for inappropriate development in the 
green belt at paragraph 149(c) of the NPPF - the extension or alteration of a 
building provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and 
above the size of the original building.  

 

The views of the relevant Conservation Officer at the Council would be 
welcome here. Whilst the site is within the Conservation area, to my mind the 
site is clearly outside of the village and thus debateable the extent to which this 
building makes a positive contribution to the Area. 
 

The Parish Meeting have a settled position that they wish to support 
developments that allow growing and changing families to stay in the village 
and are aware that this could see proposals which exceed the Borough's 50% 
'rule of thumb' view on disproportionate additions. The ad hoc extensions are 
of limited value from a design perspective. The proposed replacements would 
be an improvement. With the information available I do not object to the 
application. 

 
20. One Ward Councillor (Cllr A Brown) – No objection.  
 
 

page 30



 

 

 

Town/Parish Council  
 
21. Thrumpton Parish Meeting is keen to support small-scale modifications or 

extensions to village properties which help accommodate the changing needs 
and circumstances of residents particularly where that allows residents and 
their families to remain within the village. To support these aims we are 
developing a Neighbourhood Plan for Thrumpton to provide more flexibility for 
these types of small-scale changes given our greenbelt and conservation area 
setting and formally set out what this means for our Parish. This is under 
development. We therefore support this application. 
 

Statutory and Other Consultees 
 
Rushcliffe Borough Council 
 
22. The Borough Conservation Officer - The proposal would harm the character 

and appearance of the Conservation Area. I consider the harm to be harm at 
the lower end of the less than substantial scale. As a result, the proposal would 
fail to achieve the objective described as desirable within Section 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of that area and would thus engage a 
strong and statutory presumption against granting planning permission. As the 
level of harm is considered less than substantial permission could still be 
granted if it is concluded that public benefits outweigh harm through application 
of the test within Paragraph 208 of the NPPF (rev Dec 2023). The proposed 
development is also likely to affect existing trees. 
 

Nottinghamshire County Council 
 
23. Nottinghamshire County Council Highways Authority - The Highway Authority 

had no objections in principle to the extensions to the building as they have no 
highway implications. Notwithstanding this, the plans showed  gates  installed 
on the vehicle access points. These will need to be set back a minimum of 6 
metres from the carriageway edge to allow a vehicle to pull clear of the live 
carriageway to operate the gates. We recommend that either the plans are 
revised to reflect the gates being set back, or that a condition is required on 
the planning approval stating that no gates are to be erected within 6 metres 
of the back edge of the carriageway. 
 

24. Nottinghamshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) - 
Having considered the scale of this application the LLFA believes it is not 
required to respond to this application. However, as a general guide the 
following points are recommended for all developments:  
1. The development should not increase flood risk to existing properties or put 

the development at risk of flooding.  
2. Any discharge of surface water from the site should look at infiltration – 

watercourse – sewer as the priority order for discharge location.  
3. SUDS should be considered where feasible and consideration given to 

ownership and maintenance of any SUDS proposals for the lifetime of the 
development.  

4. Any development that proposes to alter an ordinary watercourse in a manner 
that will have a detrimental effect on the flow of water (eg culverting / pipe 
crossing) must be discussed with the Flood Risk Management Team at 
Nottinghamshire County Council. 

page 31



 

 

 

 
Local Residents and the General Public  
 
25. Letters have been sent to neighbouring residents and a site notice posted at 

the site. No letters of representation were received as a result.  
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
26. The Development Plan for Rushcliffe consists of The Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 

1: Core Strategy (LPP1) and the Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies 
(LPP2). Other material considerations include the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance (the 
Guidance). 

 
Relevant National Planning Policies and Guidance 
 
27. The relevant policy considerations in the NPPF (2023) are: 

• Paragraph 11c) 

• Chapter 12 (Achieving well- designed and beautiful places)  

• Chapter 13 (Protecting Green Belt land) 

• Chapter 14 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and 
coastal change) 

• Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) 
 

Full details of the NPPF can be found here. 
 
Relevant Local Planning Policies and Guidance 
 
28. The relevant policy considerations in the LPP1 are: 

• Policy 1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) 

• Policy 2 (Climate Change) 

• Policy 3 (Spatial Strategy) 

• Policy 4 (Nottingham-Derby Green Belt) 

• Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) 

• Policy 11 (Historic Environment) 

• Policy 17 (Biodiversity) 
 

29. The relevant policy considerations in the LPP2 are: 

• Policy 1 (Development Requirements) 

• Policy 12 (Housing Standards) 

• Policy 17 (Managing Flood Risk) 

• Policy 18 (Surface Water Management) 

• Policy 21 (Green Belt) 

• Policy 28 (Conserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets) 

• Policy 37 (Trees and Woodlands) 

• Policy 38 (Non-designated Biodiversity Assets and the Wider Ecological 
Network) 

 
30. The Rushcliffe Residential Design Guide and Thrumpton Conservation Area 

Appraisal and Management Plan is also a material consideration.  
 

31. The full text of the policies in the LPP1 and LPP2, together with the supporting 

page 32

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


 

 

 

text can be found in the Local Plan documents on the Council’s website at: 
Planning Policy - Rushcliffe Borough Council  
 

32. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990) 
also requires Local Planning Authorities to pay special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that 
area. 

 
APPRAISAL 
 
33. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The Framework does not change the 
statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision 
making. Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local Plan 
should be approved, and proposed development that conflicts should be 
refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

34. The main issues in the consideration of the application are: 
- Whether the proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green 

Belt 
- Impact on heritage assets and visual amenity 
- Impact on residential amenity 
- Flood risk 
- Biodiversity net gain 

 
Green Belt 
 
35. The application site is set within the Nottingham-Derby Green Belt. Policy 4 of 

the LPP1 reinforces the principle of the Nottingham-Derby Green Belt.  
 

36. Policy 21 of the LPP2 sets out that applications for development in the Green 
Belt will be determined in accordance with the NPPF.  
 

36. Paragraph 142 of the NPPF states that ‘The Government attaches great 
importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to 
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential 
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.’ 
 

37. Paragraph 143 goes on to state the five purposes of the Green Belt: 
a) To check the unrestricted sprawl of large built up areas; 
b) To prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; 
c) To assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 
d) To preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 
e) To assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict 

and other urban land. 
 

38. Paragraph 152 of the NPPF states that ‘inappropriate development is, by 
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very 
special circumstances’. Paragraph 153 states ‘that ‘substantial weight is given 
to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless 
the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any 
other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations.’ Paragraph 154 states that a local planning authority should 

page 33

https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planning-growth/planning-policy/


 

 

 

regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt with 
a few exceptions amongst which one relates to extensions and alterations to a 
building provided that it does not result in a disproportionate addition over and 
above the size of the original building (subparagraph c). 
 

39. Rushcliffe Borough Council has an internal guidance note that extensions of 
up to 50% cubic volume increase may be considered ‘not disproportionate’ 
where the scale and massing are also acceptable. The building on site has 
been extended in the past however, the proposed development would involve 
the removal of the existing extensions. 

 
40. The proposed extensions would have a cumulative volume of approximately 

387.84 cubic metres which would represent 71.8% additional volume above 
that of the original building. This would be significantly above the Council's 
threshold for extensions in the Green Blet and as such, it is considered the 
proposed extensions would result in a disproportionate addition to the original 
building and would therefore be inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 
Given the scale, massing and location proposed it is considered the harm to 
the openness of the Green Belt to be moderate. 

 
41. Nevertheless, inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and 

therefore can only be approved in very special circumstances. No very special 
circumstances have been provided in this case that would clearly outweigh the 
harm identified to the Green Belt and therefore the proposal is contrary to 
Section 13 of the NPPF and Policy 21 of the Local Plan. The comments from 
Cllr Walker and the Parish Meeting, in relation to the changing needs of 
families and allowing them to stay in the village are noted however these 
reasons are not considered to be exceptional circumstances to justify going 
against the National Policy and the Council’s assessment of the proposal in 
respect of the proposal constituting inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt. Thrumpton does not have a Neighbourhood Plan and therefore the 
position put forward does not form part of the Development Plan nor a material 
consideration. 
 

42. Given the matters as outlined above, it is considered that the proposed 
development does not demonstrate that very special circumstances exist that 
would clearly outweigh the harm to the openness of the Green Belt. As such 
the proposal would be contrary to the aims of Policy 21 of the LPP2 and Section 
13 of the NPPF. 
 

43. Any other harm will be considered later in the report. 
 
Heritage assets and visual amenity 

 

44. Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should 
identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage assets that may 
be affected by a proposal (including by development affecting the setting of a 
heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any necessary 
expertise. Paragraph 205 goes on to state that when considering the impact of 
a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 
important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of 
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than 
substantial harm to its significance. 

page 34



 

 

 

 
45. Significance is described in the NPPF as being the value a heritage asset to 

this and future generations because of its heritage interest. Significance 
derives not only from a heritage asset's physical presence, but also from its 
setting.  
 

46. Paragraph 208 states that where a development proposal will lead to less than 
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm 
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where 
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. 
 

47. Paragraph 209 states that the effect of an application on the significance of a 
non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the 
application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having 
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage 
asset. 
 

48. Policy 11 of the Rushcliffe LPP1 sets out that proposals and initiatives will be 
supported where the historic environment and heritage assets and their 
settings are conserved and/or enhanced in line with their interest and 
significance. Policy 28 of the Local Plan Part 2 states that proposals affecting 
heritage assets and/or its setting will be considered against the following 
criteria: 

a) The significance of the asset; 
b) Whether the proposals would be sympathetic to the character and 

appearance of the asset and any feature of special historic, architectural, 
artistic or archaeological interest that it possesses; 

c) Whether the proposals would conserve or enhance the character and 
appearance of the heritage asset by virtue of siting, scale, building form, 
massing, height, materials and quality of detail; 

d) Whether the proposals would respect the asset's relationship with the 
historic street pattern, topography, urban spaces, landscape, views and 
landmarks; 

e) Whether the proposals would contribute to the long-term maintenance 
and management of the asset; and 

f) Whether the proposed use is compatible with the asset. 
 

49. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990) 
requires Local Planning Authorities to pay special attention to the desirability 
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the Conservation 
Area. 
 

50. The proposal relates to a late Victorian traditional red brick slate farmhouse at 
Fields Farm within the Thrumpton Conservation Area. The dwelling dates from 
1881, as evidenced by the datestone, and it retains many period features such 
as terracotta mouldings making up a string course and brick detailing to the 
eaves, a front projecting two-storey gable with porch at ground level, arched 
headers to large windows and decorative chimney stacks to the gable ends. 
The farmhouse is set within a large plot surrounded by mature trees and 
hedges to the north-east, east and south-west boundaries and a timber garden 
fence to the north-west boundary. Views across the open countryside are 
possible to and from the application site which sits alongside Barton Lane, the 
road leading to and from the village. The dwelling is not an identified positive 

page 35



 

 

 

building according to the Appraisal plan for the Conservation Area, however it 
does make a strong positive contribution to the Conservation Area given the 
architectural and historic interest of the dwelling and it is a non-designated 
heritage asset.  
 

51. The significance of the dwelling derives from its late 19th century origins, layout 
and plan form, use of vernacular materials and detailing and retention of 
historic fabric and features. The dwelling also derives significance from its 
historic function as a former farmhouse with its adjacent former agricultural 
ranges and its likely connection with Lord Belper of nearby Kingston Hall given 
the inscribed datestone and the large estate in the local area known to have 
been associated with him. 

 
52. The farmhouse is reflective of the historic settlement pattern and the 

agricultural nature of the village thus positively contributing to the street scene 
and the character and appearance of the Thrumpton Conservation Area. The 
proposal would be highly visible from the public realm from the roadside 
approach along Barton Lane and across the open countryside. 

 
53. The proposed form, including scale and massing for the two proposed side 

extensions is considered too large and would appear disproportionate to the 
scale of the 1881 farmhouse and as such the proposed side extensions would 
not have a subordinate appearance. The location to either side of the host 
dwelling would enhance the disproportionality and lack of subservience 
appearance by dominating the main elevation which would harm the character 
and appearance of the host dwelling.  

 
54. The proposed side extensions are not considered acceptable and any views 

or glimpses from or into the Conservation Area would be affected in a way that 
could harm the special interest of the Conservation Area. As such, it is 
considered the proposed development would harm the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. The harm is considered to be harm at 
the lower end of the less than substantial scale. Paragraph 208 of the NPPF 
advises that where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where 
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.  
 

55. No justification has been provided for the proposed development and whilst it 
is concluded in the Heritage Statement submitted that the proposal would not 
result in any harm to any heritage assets, the Local Planning Authority 
considers the proposal would be harmful to the Conservation Area. It is 
considered, given the private residential use of the application site, no public 
benefits would derive from the proposal and therefore the proposed 
development is contrary to paragraph 208 of the NPPF, Policies 10 and 11 of 
the LPP1 and Policies 1 and 28 of the LPP2. 

 
56. The replacement of the two bay windows is considered acceptable as these 

are of no special interest themselves as they are later additions. The proposed 
rear extension and dormer would also be acceptable, given there location to 
the rear, scale and design. 

 
57. Whilst amendments are suggested by the Conservation Officer in order to 

address concerns, it is considered these would not outweigh other reasons for 
page 36



 

 

 

refusal explained above in the report. 
 
Residential amenity 

 
58. The proposal comprises extensions to the side and rear, and the replacement 

of the front bay windows. The distance to the side boundary with the converted 
to residential complex of farm buildings would be approximately 4.65m and the 
proposed side extensions would have no windows in the side elevation at first 
floor. The application site is adjoined by other residential properties only to the 
north-east.  
 

59. It is considered, given the scale, design and location of the proposed 
extensions, relationship with adjoining properties and separation distance, the 
proposed development would not result in a significantly undue overlooking 
overbearing and overshadowing impact on the residential amenities of the 
occupiers of any adjoining property, in accordance with the NPPF and Policy 
10 of the LPP1 and Policy 1 of the LPP2. 

 
Flood Risk 
 
60. The application site is located within flood zone 2 which has a medium 

probability of flooding from rivers and the sea. A flood risk assessment has 
been carried out and submitted with the proposal and the proposed extensions 
are shown to have the finished floor level no lower than the existing level of the 
host dwelling. As such it is considered the proposed development and its 
occupants would be safe from flood risk over the lifetime of the development. 
The proposal is in accordance with Policy 17 of the Local Plan Part 2. 

 
Trees 

 
61. With regards to trees, the proposed side extension to the south-west would be 

located at approximately 11 metres from the south-western boundary where 
the Leylandii trees are located. The comments from the Conservation Officer 
with regards to potential impact on trees are noted, however, given the 
distance, it is considered the trees would unlikely be affected by the proposed 
development. 

 
Biodiversity net gain 
 
62. Under Regulation 5 of the Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Exemptions) 

Regulations 2024 the statutory biodiversity gain condition required by 
Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) does 
not apply in relation to planning permission for development which inter alia is 
the subject of a householder application within the meaning of article 2(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. 

 
Conclusions 

 
63. Negotiations have taken place during the consideration of the application. 

Whilst some amendments have been made to the proposal for clarification 
purposes this has not addressed the fundamental objection to the proposal 
and therefore the application is recommended to refuse planning permission. 
 

page 37



 

 

 

64. Taking the above into account, it is considered that the development would 
result in a disproportionate addition over and above the original building and 
would therefore be inappropriate in the Green Belt. Without very special 
circumstances to clearly outweigh the harm to the green belt identified the 
proposal is considered to be contrary to Section 13 of the NPPF and Policy 21 
of the Local Plan Part 2. It has also been found that the proposal, by virtue of 
the side extensions would result in harm to the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area, contrary to Section 16 of the NPPF, Policies 10 and 11 
of the LPP1 and Policies 1 and 28 of the LPP2 and Section 72 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is RECOMMENDED that planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 

 
1. The proposed development would result in disproportionate additions 

over and above the original building and would therefore be 
inappropriate in the Green Belt. Very special circumstances have not 
been demonstrated to clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by 
reason of inappropriateness or other harms identified. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Section 13 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (paragraphs 152, 153 and 154) and Policy 21 (Green Belt) of 
the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2. 
 

2. The proposed side extensions are not considered to be acceptable in 
form, layout and scale. Any views or glimpses from or into the Thrumpton 
Conservation Area would be affected in a way that would harm the 
special interest of the Conservation Area, and therefore it is considered 
the proposed development would harm the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. The less than substantial level of harm identified 
would not be outweighed by any demonstrated public benefits and 
therefore the proposed development is contrary to Section 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Section 16 
of the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraphs 205, 208 and 
209), Policies 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) and 11 (Historic 
Environment) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1 and Policies 1 
(Development Requirements) and 28 (Conserving and Enhancing 
Heritage Assets) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2. 

 
 

page 38



Planning Appeals from 27 September 2024 to 31 October 2024 

 

Planning Ref: Address Proposal or Breach Appeal 
Decision  

Decision Type Planning Inspectorate  
Reference and link to 
Appeal decision notice 

Comments/ 
Decision Date  

 
23/01664/FUL 

 
Rushcliffe Golf 
Club, Stocking 
Lane, East Leake 
 

 
Erection of 3no. dwellings 
with associated vehicular 
access 

 
Dismissed  

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/W/24/3339878 

 
27/09/2024 

 
22/01907/FUL 

 
Old Wharf Tea 
Rooms, Main 
Street, Hickling 

 
To retain existing open 
sided covered area, bin 
store and permeable 
surfacing. 

 
Dismissed  

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/W/23/3332122 

 
04/10/2024 

 
23/01974/FUL 

 
Willow House, 
Melton Road, 
Hickling Pastures 

 
New build dwelling to 
existing amenity space with 
associated landscaping. 
New access with drop kerb 
and parking. New front 
gate. 

 
Dismissed 

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/W/24/3345729 

 
08/10/2024 

 
24/00471/FUL 

 
21 Exbury 
Gardens, West 
Bridgford 

Construction of a double 
detached garage on 
frontage land forming part 
of the host dwelling to 
Construction of a double 
detached garage on 
frontage land forming part 
of the host dwelling to 
include hedge 
screening/landscaping. 

 
Dismissed 

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/D/24/3346885 

 
11/10/2024 

page 39

A
genda Item

 5



Planning Appeals from 27 September 2024 to 31 October 2024 

 

 
24/00664/FUL 

 
38 Ashley Road, 
Keyworth 

 
Loft Conversion to include 
a dormer extension to rear 
roof, raise ridge height and 
add one roof window to 
front roof. 

 
Dismissed 

 
Delegated  

 
APP/P3040/D/24/3351739 

 
18/10/2024 

 
24/00702/FUL 

 
32 Alford Road, 
West Bridgford 

 
Erection of a two-storey 
side extension and single 
storey rear extension. 
Raised height of existing 
chimney. 

 
Allowed 

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/D/24/3351661 

 
18/10/2024 

 
22/02241/FUL 

 
Land East Of 
Hawksworth And 
Northwest Of 
Thoroton, 
Shelton Road, 
Thoroton 

 
Installation of renewable 
energy generating solar 
farm comprising ground-
mounted photovoltaic 
solar arrays, together with 
substation, inverter 
stations, security 
measures, site access, 
internal access tracks and 
other ancillary 
infrastructure, including 
landscaping and 
biodiversity enhancements 

 
Allowed 

 
Delegated 

 
APP/P3040/W/23/3330045 

 
23/10/2024 

 

page 40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 October 2024
	4 Planning Applications
	24-00485-FUL
	24-00485-FUL 146 Loughborough Rd, Ruddington
	24-00603-FUL
	24-00603-FUL Fields Farm, Barton Lane, Thrumpton

	5 Planning Appeals

